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8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
9 SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
f 10
| 11 11 COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING ) Case No.: 04-CV-2093 J (NLS)
COMMISSION, )
12 )
Plaintiff, )
13 )
vs. ) STIPULATION OF PERMANENT
14 ) INJUNCTION AND ANCILLARY RELIEF
‘ WHITE PINE TRUST CORPORATION, a ) AGAINST DEFENDANT RICHARD
15 || California corporation, and RICHARD ) MATTHEWS, JR; and ORDER
MATTHEWS, an individual, and ) THEREON
16 || STEPHEN BAERE, an individual, )
)
17 Defendants, )
i |
19 LUCIA MATTHEWS, an individual, )
)
Relief Defendant. )
| 20
21
22 On or about November 19, 2004, plaintiff United States Commodity Futures
| 23 || Trading Commission (“CFTC") filed a First Amended Complaint against Defendants
24 || White Pine Trust Corporation and Richard Matthews Jr., among others; seeking
25 ||injunctive and other ancillary relief for violations of'thé”"Commodity Exchange Act, as
26 {|amended (the “Act”), 7 USC §§ 1 et seq. (2(502),, and the Regulations promulgated
27 || thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §§ 1 et seq. (2002). |
28 : o |
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Stipulation of Permanent Injunction and
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. |
CONSENTS AND AGREEMENTS

To effect settlement of the matters alleged in the first amended complaint
against Defendant Richard Matthews Jr. (“Defendant”) without a trial on the merits or
any further judicial proceedings, Defendant:

1. Consents to the entry of this stipulation;

2. Affirms that Defendant has agreed to this stipulation voluntarily, and that
no promise or threat has been made by the CFTC or any member, officer, agent or
representative thereof, or by any other person, to induce consent to this stipulation,
other than specifically set forth herein;

3. Acknowledges service of the summons and first amended complaint;

4. Admits jurisdiction of this Court over himself and the subject matter of
this action pursuant to §6¢ of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §13a-1;

5. Admits venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to §6c¢ of the Act, 7
U.S.C. §13a-1;

6. Waives:

a. all claims which it may possess under the Equal Access to Justice
Act, 5 U.S.C. §504 (2000) and 28 U.S.C. § 2412 (2000) as amended by
Pub. L. No. 104-121, §§231-32, 110 Stat. 862-63 and Part. 148 of the
Commission's Regulations, 17 C.F.R. §§ 148.1 et seq. to seek costs,
fees and other expenses relating to, or arising from, this action,

b. any claim of double jeopardy based on the institution of this
proceeding or any order imposing civil monetary penalties or any
other relief; and, .

c. any rights of appeal from this Order;

7. Consents to the continued jurisdiction of this Court for the purpose of
enforcing the terms and conditions of this stipulation and for any other purpose

relevant to this matter,;
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8. - Neither admits nor denies the allegations of the First Amended
Complaint and/or the findings and conclusions of this stipulation, except as to
jurisdiction and venue, which Defendant admits. However, Defendant agrees that the
allegations of the First Amended Complaint, and all of the findings of fact made by this
Court and contained herein shall be taken as true and correct and be given preclusive
effect without further proof only for the purposes of enforcing this stipulation, or any
subsequent bankruptcy proceeding filed by, on behalf of, or against Defendant for the
purpose of determining whether his restitution obligation and/or other payments
ordered herein are excepted from discharge. Defendant also shall provide immediate
notice of any bankruptcy filed by, on behalf of, or against him in the manner required
by this stipulation; and

9. Agrees that neither he, nor any of his agents, servants, employees,
contractors nor attorneys shall take any action or make any public statements
denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation of the First Amended Complaint or
findings in this stipulation, or creating or tending to create the impression that the First
Amended Complaint and this stipulation are without factual basis; provided however,
that nothing in this provision affects Defendant’s (i) testimonial obligations, or (ii) his
right to take legal positions in other proceedings to which the CFTC is not a party.
Defendant shall take all necessary steps to ensure that all of his agents, servants,
employees, contractors and attorneys understand and comply with this agreement.

Il.
FINDINGS OF FACT

The following findings of fact and conclusions of law are binding insofar as
they relate to defendant Richard Matthews, Jr., but are not :. - ... binding
insofar as they relate to the other defendants in this action. NV O

10.  Defendant White Pine Trust Corporation (“White Pine”) was a foreign
exchange trading firm operating in the San Diego area. De’fe.ndant Richard Matthews

Jr. (“Matthews”) is the founder and managing director of White Pine, having
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established White Pine in 1999 as a foreign exchange trading firm. Matthews was

directly involved in the development of the website, www.whitepinetrust.com, and the

solicitation materials. Matthews, among others, solicited customers at trade shows
nationwide, was a signatory on White Pine’s operating accounts, and was primarily
responsible for the overall day-to-day operation of White Pine.

11.  Prior to its removal, White Pine’s website, along with other advertising
and solicitation materials provided to potential customers, purported to offer
customers the opportunity to use foreign currency options as hedges, among other
things. Defendants offered to manage the trading of customer funds in foreign
currency accounts, and falsely represented that customers could expect steady
returns on their investments while downplaying the risk of loss.

12.  Specifically, Defendants solicited potential customers to invest in White
Pine’s Pinnacle Capital Fund, both through attending trade shows nationwide and
through White Pine’s former website. Defendants replicated the promotional
materials given to customers on White Pine’s website. On both the White Pine
website and in other solicitation materials for the Pinnacle Capital Fund, Defendants
boasted an eight-year cumulative performance record of 591%, while simultaneously
guaranteeing that 75% of its customers’ investments are protected from loss each
month.

13.  Defendants told one prospectiVe customer at a September 2002 trade
show that their fund had approximately 20-30% return on investment. Based upon
profit representations made by Defendants, this customer invested over $300,000 in
White Pine. Defendants also directed the investors to White Pine’s website so that
they could monitor their personal accounts. All references to*White Pine’s website
were made in spite of the fact that Defendants knew that the White Pine website was
fictitious. |

14.  White Pine’s promotional materials also fraudulently touted the

experience and educational background of the account managers, promising that
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“your account manager [is] at least on the same educational plateau as corporate
treaéures (sic) and international bankers.”

15.  In soliciting these customers purportedly to trade foreign currency and
foreign currency options on their behalf, first through direct solicitation materials and
subsequently by referring the customers to its website, Defendants made the

following misrepresentations of material facts:

a. All funds are separated and maintained in a “client funds
account” and are not commingled with White Pine’s operating
accounts;

b. All customer accounts are held outside White Pine at regulated

broker dealers;

C. White Pine has been in the business for eight years with a
cumulative performance record of 591%, covering the time
period of 1995 to 2004; and

d. White Pine account managers have specialized trading
- expertise.

16. These representations created the impression that White Pine was a

legitimate firm. However, these statements are false, in that:

a. Customer funds were neither separated nor maintained in the
clients’ name; rather, funds are deposited into operating
accounts in White Pine’s name or otherwise commingled with
other funds, where some funds were misappropriated and used
for business and personal expenses;

b. White Pine was not in existence in 1995-1998, since it was
formed in 1999; and

C. The White Pine account managers possessed little knowledge
of, or expertise in trading foreign currency and/or foreign
currency options.

17.  White Pine customers sent money directly to White Pine. Customers
either wired money directly into White Pine’s operating accounts, or wrote personal
checks made out to White Pine Trust Corporation, which Defendants then deposited
into White Pine’s operating accounts. Defendants gave customers promotional
materials that referred them to White Pine’s website so customers could track their

account. Customers also received monthly account statements on White Pine’s
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Pinnacle Capital Fund letterhead. The customer account statements did not indicate
the specific trading executed, where the purported trading occurred, or where the
customer funds were deposited.

18.  Defendants also utilized fictitious testimonials made by individ'uals who
purported to be actual White Pine investors. In fact, Defendants were, at all times,
aware that such individuals were not investors with White Pine, and that their
testimonials were entirely false.

19.  The foreign currency options contracts and options trading offered by
White Pine have not been conducted or executed on or subject to the rules of a
contract market, or a foreign board of trade. White Pine is not an appropriate
counterparty under the Act for the alleged transactions herein, and certain customers
solicited by White Pine were not eligible contract participants.

M.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and all
parties hereto pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Act which authorizes the Commission.to
seek injunctive relief against any person whenever it shall appear that such person
has engaged, is engaging or is about to engage in any act or practice constituting a
violation of any provision of the Act or any rule, regulation or order thereunder.

2. Venue properly lies with this Court pursuanf to Section 6¢ of the Act.

3. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendant, who has
acknowledged service of the Complaint and consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over

him.
4. The Commission and the Defendant have agreed to this Court's

retention of continuing jurisdiction over each of them for the purpose of enforcing the

terms of this stipulation.
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5. By the conduct set forth in this stipulation above, Defendant violated
Section 4c(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b)(2002), and Regulations 1.1, 32.9 and
32.11,17 C.F.R. §§ 1.1 and 32.9 (2004) in that in or in connection with an offer to
enter into, the entry into, the confirmation of, the execution of, or the maintenance of
commodity options transactions, the Defendant cheated, defrauded, or deceived or
attempted to cheat, defraud, or deceive, other persons, by misappropriating customer
funds, and by making false, deceptive, or misleading representations of material facts
and by failing to disclose matérial facts necessary to make other facts they disclosed
not misleading. Furthermore, the aforementioned conduct of the Defendant violated
17 C.F.R. § 32.11 because the foreign currency options transactions White Pine
purports to offer were not conducted on or subject to the rules of a designated
contract market or foreign board of trade. Thus, the Defendant offered illegal options
transactions.

IV.
STIPULATION AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, RESTITUTION,
AND CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY

1. Defendant shall be permanently restrained, enjoined and prohibited

from directly or indirectly:

a. engaging in conduct, in violation of Section 4c(b) of the Act,
7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b)(2002), and Regulations 1.1, 32.9 and 32.11,
17 C.F.R. §§ 1.1, 32.9 and 32.11 (2004); and

b. soliciting funds for, engaging in, controlling, or directing the
trading of any commodity futures or options accounts for or on

behalf of any other person or entity, whether by power of
attorney or otherwise; '

2. Defendant is permanently restrained, enjoined and prohibited from

directly or indirectly:

a. trading on or subject to the rules of any
registered entity;

b. engaging in, controlling or directing the trading
for any commaodity futures, security futures,
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options, options on futures, or foreign currency
1 options -account for or on behalf of any other
_ person or entity, whether by power of attorney or
2 otherwise; and
3 C. applying for registration or claiming exemption
' from registration with the Commission in any
4 capacity, and engaging in any activity requiring
such registration or exemption from registration
5 with the Commission, exce gt as provided for in
Regulation 4.14 (a)(9) 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9)
6 (2004), or acting as a principal, agent or any
other officer or employee of any person
7 registered, exempted from registration or required
to be registered with the Commission, except as
8 provided for in Regulation 4.14 (a)(9), 17 C.F.R.
§ 4.14(a)(9) (2004). This includes, but is not
9 limited to, soliciting, accepting or receiving any
funds, revenue or other property from any
10 person, giving commodity trading advice for
compensation, except as provided for in Regulation
L 4.14 (a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) (2004), or
soliciting prospective customers, related to the
12 purchase or sale of any commodlty futures,
security futures, options, options on futures or
13 forelgn currency futures.
14 '
15 3. Defendant is further permanently enjoined from entering”into any
16 || commodity futures or options transactions for his own personal account, for any
17 || account in which he has a direct or indirect interest and/or having any commodity
18 ||interests traded on his behalf.
19 4. The injunctive provisions of this stipulation shall be binding upon the
20 || Defendant, upon any person insofar as he or she'is acting in the capacity of officer,
21 || agent, servant, employee or attorney of the Defendant, and upon any person who
22 || receives actual notice of this stipulation, by pérsonal service or otherwise, insofar as
23 | he or she is acting in active concert or participation with the Defendant.
24
25 ||IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED THAT DEFENDANT RICHARD MATTHEWS, JR PAY
26 ||RESTITUTION AND A CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY: -
27 1, RESTITUTION: Upon entry of this stipulation, Defendant Richard
28 || Matthews Jr. (“Defendant") is liable for, and a judgment is entered against him for
8 04-CV-2093 J (NLS)
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restitution to investors in the amount of $14,767,579.76, payable according to the
instructions set forth in the Judgment rendered against Defendant in Case No. 04-
CR-3162-JM, plus pre-judgment interest of $1,287,162.29. Post-judgment interest
after the date of this stipulation until the restitution is paid in full shall be paid at the
post-judgment interest rate set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1961. Investors shall be repaid in
the amounts set forth in Attachment A, which is incorporated by reference into this
stipulation and order. Restitution shall be reduced by any additional amounts
recovered from Defendant’s assets held by, or recovered by the Receiver, as a result
of restitution Judgment rendered against Defendant Matthews in the Criminal Action
Case No. 04-CR-3162-JM. The Receiver, Robb Evans and Assoc., shall propose to
the Court a restitution plan for distribution of assets currently held in receivership, as
well as any other assets available for distribution. The restitution plan shall identify
the persons entitled to restitution, the amount each person is entitled to receive, a
procedure for giving notice to investors, and the manner in which distribution shall be

made.

2. CIVIL MONETARY PENALTIES: Upon entry of this stipulation,
pursuant to § 6c of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2002), Defendant Richard Matthews,
Jr. is liable for and judgment shall be entered against him for a civil monetary penalty
of $14,767,579.76 plus post-judgment interest. Interest after the date of this
stipulation until the civil monetary penalty is paid in full shall be paid at the post-
judgment interest rate set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1961. Defendant Matthews shall pay
such civil monetary penalty by electronic funds transfer, or by U.S. postal money
order, certified check, bank cashier's chéck, or bank money order, made payable to
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, and sent to Dennese Posey, Division
of Enforcement, Commodity Futures Trading Commission, Three Lafayette Centre,
1155 21 Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20581, under cover of a letter that identifies

Defendant and the name and docket number of the proceeding; Defendant shall
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simultaneously transmit a copy of the cover letter and the form of payment to the
Director, Division of Enforcement, Commodity Futures Trading Commission, at the
following address: 1155 21% Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581. All payments of
the civil monetary penalty shall be paid to the US Treasury. Any payments made by
the Defendant shall be applied first to the restitution order, fhen to the Civil Monetary

Penalty, once the restitution has been satisfied.

3. PARTIAL PAYMENTS: All sums collected from Defendant pursuant to
this stipulation will first go toward restitution and then toward the civil monetary
penalty. Any acceptance by the Plaintiff of partial payment of Defendant’s restitution
and/or civil monetary obligations, shall not be deemed a waiver of his obligation to
make further payments pursuant to this stipulation, or a waiver of the Plaintiff’s right

to seek to compel payment of any remaining balance.

4, THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES: Pursuant to Rule 71 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, each of the individuals identified in Attachment A is
explicitly made an intended third-party beneficiary of this stipulation and may seek to
enforce obedience of this stipulation to obtain satisfaction of any portion of the
restitution amount which has not been paid by Defendant, fo ensure continued
compliance with any provision of this stipulation and to hold Defendant in contempt

for any violations of any provision of this stipulation.

5. COLLATERAL AGREEMENTS: Defendant shall immediately notify the
Commission if he makes or has previously made any agreement with any investor
obligating him to make payments outside of this stipulation. He shall also provide
immediate evidence to the Court and the Commission of any payments made

pursuant to such agreement.

6. TRANSFER OF ASSETS: Defendant shall not transfer or cause others

to transfer funds or other property to the custody, possession, or control of any other

10 04-CV-2093 J (NLS)
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person for the purpose of concealing such funds from the Court, the Commission or
any investor until the restitution amounts have been paid in full.

V.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. If any provision of this stipulation or the application of any provision or
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this stipulation, and the application of
the provision to any other person or circumstance, shall not be affected by the

holding.

2. Upon being served with copies of this stipulation and order after entry
by the Court, the Defendant shall sign an acknowledgment of such service and serve
such acknowledgment on the Commission within seven (7) calendar days.

3. This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this action in order to implement
and carry out the terms of all orders and decrees that may be entered herein, to
entertain any suitable application or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction
of this Court, and to assure compl»iance with this stipulation and order.

4. All notice required to be given by any provision in this stipulation and

order shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, as follows:

James H. Holl, 1l

Commodity Futures Trading Commission
1155 21st Street, NW

Washington, DC 20581

Telephone (202) 418-5000

Facsimile (202) 418-5538

5. In the event that Defendant changes his residential or business
telephone number(s) and/or address(es) at any time, he shall provide written notice
of the new number(s) and/or address(es) to the Commission within ten calendar days

thereof.
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1
5 - PLAINTIFF:
3
4 James H. Holl, [IMOCBar No. 453473
U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading
5 Commission
1155 21° Street, NW
6 Washington, DC 20581
Telephone (202) 418-5000
7 Facsimile (202) 418-5538
8 ATTORNEYS FOR THE PLAINTIFF
9 U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
COMMISSION
10
11
12 DEFENDANT:
14 Richard Matt
15
16
Charles LaBella, Esq.
17 La Bella & McNamara, LLP
401 West "A" Street, Suite 1150
18 San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 696-9200
19 Facsimile: (619) 696-9269
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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ORDER

Richard Matthews, Jr. as set forth herein.

UNITED STATES DISTRI

The Court, being fully advised in the premises, and finding good cause and no
just reason for delay, hereby approves the parties’ agreement. The Court hereby

orders entry of the permanent injunction and ancillary relief against defendant

o
SO ORDERED, this 2 1=day of Y&ews , 2006, at San Diego, CA.
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ATTACHMENT A
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LA BELLA & MCNAMARA, LLP
CHARLES G. LA BELLA (SBN 183448)
JOHN D. KIRBY (SBN 149496)
KRISHNA G. HANEY (SBN 229652)
401 West “A” Street, Suite 1150
San Diego, California 92101

Tel: (619) 696-9200

Fax: (619) 696-9269

Attorneys for Defendant
Richard Matthews

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

O W 0o N O o &~ W N

—h

COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

Case No.: 04CV2093-J

[ U N
N -

DECLARATION OF SERVICE

_‘.
w:

VS.

)

)

)

)

)

3
WHITE PINE TRUST CORPORATION, a )
California corporation, and RICHARD )
MATTHEWS, an individual, and ;
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

—
(67 S SN

STEPHEN BAERE, and individual,

—
o

Defendants,

—
N

LUCIA MATTHEWS, an individual,

—
(0 o]

Relief Defendant.

—
(o]

N
(@]

I, Linh Quach, declare as follows:

)]
e

| am an employee of a member of the bar of this Court at whose direction the service was

[\%
N

made in the County of San Diego, State of California. | am over the age of 18 and not a party to the

N
w

within action; my business address is: 401 West “A” Street, Suite 1150, San Diego, California 92101.

N
D

On October 20, 2006, | served the following document(s) described as:

N
(8)]

STIPULATION OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND ANCILLARY RELIEF AGAINST
DEFENDANT RICHARD MATTHEWS, JR; AND ORDER THEREON

NN
N O
>

MAIL by causing a true copy thereof to be placed in a sealed envelope with postage thereon

n
oo

1 04CV2093-J
Declaration of Service
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fully prepaid to be placed in the United States mail at San Diego, California addressed as indicated
below. | am “readily familiar” with this firm’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. It is deposited with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day in the ordinary course of
business.
Richard Matthews -
Inmate # 25863-018
Yankton Federal Prison
1016 Douglas Avenue
Yankton, South Dakota 57078
Tel: 605-665-3262
James H. Holi, Ill, Esq. Attorneys for Plaintiff Commodity Futures
Rachel Entman, Esq. Trading Commission
Erin E. Vespe, Esq.
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
1155 21st Street, NW.
Washington, DC 20581
Tel: 202-418-5000
Fax: 202-418-5523

FACSIMILE by causing such document to be transmitted by facsimile machine to the
office(s) of the parties indicated herein. The facsimile machine used complied with Rule 2003 and no
error was reported by the machine.

OVERNITE EXPRESS / FEDERAL EXPRESS by causing a true copy thereof to be placed in
a sealed envelope addressed to the office(s) of the parties indicated hereinbelow fully prepaid to be
placed in Overnite Express / Federal Express delivery service box at 401 West “A” Street, San Diego,
California. 1 am “readily familiar” with this firm’s practice of collection and processing correspondence
for Overnite Express / Federal Express service. It is deposited with Overnite Express / Federal
Express on that same day in the ordinary course of business.
______ BY PERSONAL SERVICE by causing a true and correct copy of the aforementioned
document(s) to be delivered to the parties on the attached service list this date by Diversified Legal

Services, Inc.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is

, CaliforrF)Q/D/\-

true and correct.

Executed this 20th day of October, 2006 in San Di

2 04CV2093 J
Declaration of Service




